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NEPBbIU AKAAEMUYECKUWUU LLEHTP BOCTOYHOU CUBUPM:

NMPOEKTbI U PEAJIUU

FIRST ACADEMIC CENTER OF EASTERN SIBERIA:

PROJECTS AND REALITIES

H.A. Kynepuwrox

BocmoyHasa Cubupb, npouzeodumesibHble Cusbl, MPOoeK-
mel akademuyecKux y4pexdeHull, AKademus HayK
CCCP, BocmouHo-Cubupckuli punuan AH CCCP.

CTaTbA NOCBALLEHA HEM3BECTHOM CTpaHULEe B UCTOPUMU
aKagemuyeckon HayKku BoctouHoii Cubupu — usyueHuio
npoekTtoB ¢unmana Akagemuu Hayk CCCP, noaroTtos-
NIeHHbIX Hay4yHOU obuiecTBeHHOCTbIO UPKYTCKa B cepe-
AauHe 1940-x rr. U3syyueHne UCTopun HayKu permoHa no-
3BONISAIET CAENaTb BbIBOA, YTO UAEUN NO CO3[4aHUI0 KOM-
NIEKCHOTO HAy4YHOro LLEHTPA YAacTUYHO BOMNJIOTUAUCH
B YKU3Hb CNYCTA AecATUNETUE, NPU opraHusauum Cubup-
ckoro otpeneHusa AH CCCP.

CTOPUN aKaZeMU4YecKol HayKkum BocTouyHoM
Cnbupu noceaueHbl paboTtsl 3.U. PabeyKkon,
E.T. AptemoBa, B.H. KazapuHa u ap. N3yyas npobne-
Mbl pPa3BUTUA COLMANBHO-3KOHOMMUYECKOTO M Hay4-
HOro MoTeHLMana pernoHa, UccnenoBaTeNln Heus-
6eXHO BbIABAANN BAaPUATUBHOCTb 3TOFO Pa3BUTKA,
T. €. CYLLEeCTBOBAHME Pa3/INYHbIX BAPMAHTOB (Mpoek-
TOB) MO TOMY UM MHOMY BOMpocy. B ntore nsyyeHune
NMPOEKTOB BbIJINIOCb B CAMOCTOATE/IbHOE UCTOPUO-
rpaduyeckoe HanpasneHue [Aptemos, 2004; Jonro-
NtoK 1 ap., 2002; TumoweHko, 1997].
MpoeKTbl
na BoctouHo CnbUPKU, MHULMUPOBAHHbIE YYeHbI-

Nno Pa3BUTUKO HAY4YHOro noTeHuwuna-

MW M MECTHbIMW BIAaCTAMM, Npeanarann macwtab-
Hble NAaHbl U3y4YeHUA U OCBOEHWUA MPUPOLHbIX 60-
raTcTe permoHa. O4HaKo B peasnbHOCTM OCYLLECTBUTD
3T NnaHbl 66110 HenpocTo. Llenb cTaTbn — Nokasatb
NPUYUHBI OCYLLECTBNEHMA WAN HEOCYLLECTBAEHMA
pa3/IYHbIX NPOEKTOB NO PAa3BUTMIO aKaZeMMUYECKOM
HayKkn BocTouHon CMbupmn Ha ocHOBe NpUBAEYEHMUA
HOBbIX JOKYMeHTOB 13 HayuHoro apxusa MpKyTckoro
Hay4Horo ueHTpa Cnbupckoro otgeneHuns PAH.
MoABneHMe nepBbiX aKaZeMUYECKUX yuperkae-
HUW OMKTOBA/IOChb PA3/IMYHbIMM 0BCTOATENBCTBAMM.
TaK, NOBbILWEHHAA CEMCMMUYECKana aKTUBHOCTb peru-
OHa cTafa NpUYnHOM co3paHuna B 1884 r. UpKyTckoit

N.A. Kupershtokh

Eastern Siberia, productive forces, projects of academic
institutions, Academy of Sciences of the USSR, Eastern
Siberian branch of AS USSR.

The article is devoted to an unknown page in the history
of academic science in Eastern Siberia that is studying
the projects of the branch of the Academy of Sciences of
the USSR, initiated by the Irkutsk scientific community in
the middle of the 1940-ies. The study of the history of
regional science allows us conclude that the ideas about
creation of the complex scientific center were partially
realized a decade later during the foundation of the
Siberian branch of the AS USSR.

The history of academic science in Eastern
Siberia was studied by Z.I. Rabetsky, E.T. Artemoyv,
V.N. Kazarin and others. Studying the problems
of the development of socio-economic and
scientific potential of the region, the researchers
inevitably detected variability of this development,
i.e. the existence of different options (projects)
on a particular issue. As a result, the study of
the projects led to a separate historiographical
direction [Artemov, 2004; Dolgolyuk and others,
2002; Tymoshenko, 19971].

The projects on the development of the
scientific potential of Eastern Siberia, initiated by
the scientists and local authorities, offered large-
scale plans of studying and developing the natural
resources of the region. However, in reality to carry
out these plans was not easy. The purpose of the
article is to show the reasons of implementation
or non-implementation of various projects on
the development of academic science in Eastern
Siberia on the basis of referring to new documents
from the Scientific Archive of the Irkutsk Scientific
Center of the Siberian Branch of RAS.

The emergence of the first academic
institutions was dictated by different circums-
tances. Thus, increased seismic activity in the
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MarHUTHO-METEeOoPOI0rNYECKOM
a 3aTeM U CEeTU CEMNCMUYECKUX CTaHLMi B NIpKyTCKe,
KpacHosipcke, Mpubaiikanbe. Cuctematnyeckoe us-
yuyeHue balikana komuccmeit AKagemumm HayK npumse-
210 K CO34aHMI0 CTaHUMK, KoTopaa c 1931 r. ctana Ha-
3blBaTbCA balKanbCKOM AMMHONOIMYECKOM CTAHLMU-
eli AH CCCP.

B coBeTcKMi Nnepuos cepbesHbIM NOBOAOM A5
co3gaHua Hosbix HNY BocTtouHoi Cnubupu sisnanacb
HeobxoA4MMOCTb HayYHOro COMNPOBOXKAEHUA AHrapo-
EHMcencKoM nporpammbl —CamMoro KpynHOro npoek-

obcepBatopuu,

Ta MO OCBOEHUIO NPOM3BOAUTE/IbHBIX CUA PErMoHa.
B 1931 r. Ha MNepBom BoctouyHO-CnbMpPCKOM Kpae-
BOM Hay4yHO-UCCNEeL0BATE/IbCKOM Cbe3ge YyyeHble
NpeasoXKMAM CO34aTb KOMMNEKCHOE aKagemuye-
CKoe yuypexxaeHune [JonrontoKk n gp., 2002, c. 155].
Ha ocHoBe npoeKkta Akagemun Hayk LMK CCCP npwu-
HAN cneunanbHoe NocTaHoBAeHMe 06 opraHu3auum
HECKOJIbKMX Hay4YHO-UCcCcnen0BaTeIbCKuX 6as (dunu-
anos), B Tom uucne B Upkytcke (HACO. ¢. 1. On. 1.
[.1335.1.1,2).

Mpobnemoit opraHnsaummn puanana saHMmasnca
BocTouHO-CnBMpPCKUIA KpalinaaH. MecTHble BiacTu
npeanaraau: pacwmpuTb TeMaTUKY MCCAeL0BaHUM
Balika/NIbCKOM IMMHO/IOTMYECKON CTaHUMK; co3aaTb
TypyXaHCKyto CTaHUMIO, @ 3aTeEM U Mep3NOTHbIN UH-
CTUTYT AN1A U3YYEHUA CEBEPHbIX PaiOHOB BOCTOUHOM
Cnbupwn; opraHn3oBaTb XMMMUYECKYLO labopaToputo
N Hay4yHyto Bubnumoteky [Aptemos, 1990, c. 18-19].

B 1930-e rr. peanunsaymio npoeKkToB AHrapo-
EHMCENCKOW Nporpammbl OCYLLECTBUTb HE YAan0Ch,
a nnaHbl no co3gaHuio duamana B BocTouHol Cu-
6MpK He MOrNM Peanm3oBaTbCsA B CUY OrpPaHUYEH-
HbIX Ka4pOBbIX, MaTepUuasibHbIX, UHAHCOBbIX pecyp-
coB. OHAKo B roabl BOMHblI COBMECTHbIE MUCCenO0-
BaHWA YYEHbIX LEHTPasbHbIX U MECTHbIX yuperKae-
Hui C.C. CmupHoga, C.B. O6bpyuesa, B.C. Cobonesa,
H.A. ®nopeHcosa, E.B. MaBnosckoro, M.M. OaunHuo-
Ba W Ap. NO3BOINAN MO-HOBOMY OLLEHUTb NOTEHLMAN
NpUPOAHbLIX pecypcoB BocTtouHol Cubupu [OcTaww-
Ko, 2002, c. 47].

B nnaHax NOCNEeBOEHHOr0 BOCCTAHOB/EHUA
N Pa3BUTUA SIKOHOMMUKM NpeaycMmaTpuBanach peanm-
3aLMA HECKO/IbKUX MPOEKTOB, CBA3aHHbIX C peasn3a-
umen AHrapo-EHuncelickol nporpammbl. ITo NOATON-
KHY/10 HayYHYIO M MapPTUMNHO-TOCYAaPCTBEHHYIO 31U~
Ty MpKyTCKa BHOBb MOCTaBMTb BOMPOC O CO34aHUMU
dunnmnana AKagemmm HayK B BoctouHom Cnbupm.
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region led to the creation of the Irkutsk Magnetic
Meteorological Observatory in 1884, and then
of the network of seismic stations in Irkutsk,
Krasnoyarsk and the Baikal region. A systematic
study of the Baikal by the board of the Academy of
Sciences led to the creation of the station, which
got the name of the Baikal Limnological Station of
the Academy of Sciences of the USSR in 1931.

During the Soviet period, a major cause
for the creation of new research institutions in
Eastern Siberia was the need in the scientific
support of the Angara-Yenisey program that was
the largest project on the development of the
productive forces in the region. In 1931 at the
First Eastern Siberian regional research congress
the scientists proposed creating an integrated
academic institution [Dolgolyuk and others,
2002, p. 155]. Basing on the draft of the Academy
of Sciences of the USSR, the Central Executive
Committee adopted a special resolution on the
organization of several scientific research bases
(branches), including in Irkutsk (SA SB. F. 1. Op. 1.
D.1335.L.1,2).

The problem of the branch organization was
the responsibility of the Eastern Siberian regional
planning center. Local authorities suggested
expanding the scope of the researches of the Baikal
Limnological Station, creating the Turukhansk
station, and then creating the institute for the
study of permafrost in the northern regions of
Eastern Siberia, organizing a chemical laboratory
and a research library [Artemov, 1990, p. 18-19].

In the 1930-ies the projects of the Angara-
Yenisey program could not be implemented, and
the plans to establish branches in Eastern Siberia
could not be realized because of the limited human,
material and financial resources. However, during
the war, the joint researches of the scientists of the
central and local institutions, such as S.S. Smirnov,
S.V. Obruchev, V.S. Sobolev, N.A. Florensov, E.V.
Pavlovsky, M.M. Odintsov and others, allowed
reevaluating the potential of the natural resources
of Eastern Siberia [Ostashko, 2002, p. 47].

The plans of the post-war reconstruction
and economic development involved realizing
several projects related to the implementation of
the Angara-Yenisey program. This prompted the
scientific and party-state elite of Irkutsk to raise
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B nioHe 1946 r. H.A. ®nopeHcos, E.B. MNaBnos-
ckuin, T.T. Oeyna, W.A.Kobenaukuii, B.A. KpoToB
npu noaaepxke Npkytckoro obkoma BKIM(6) 1 06-
nncnonkoma obpatunumch B LUK BKM(6) n CM CCCP
C npeanoXeHuem opraHusosaTb B UpkyTcke Bce-
COMO3HYO KOHdEepeHL MO NO U3yYEHUO NPOU3BOAM-
TeNbHbIX CUA, YTOObI ONpefennTb NepCcnekTUBy co3-
naHna ¢éunvana Akagemun Hayk. B aBrycte 1946 .
CekpeTtapuart LUK BKIM(6) pa3pelumn co3BaTb KOHbpe-
peHuuto [KasapuH, 1998, c. 200].

B UpKyTcKe 6bin co3gaH OprkommTeT, KOTOPbIN
3aHMMaNCA He TO/IbKO NMOATOTOBKOM Hay4HOro me-
ponpuATUA, HO N aKKYMy/IMPOBaa NPOEKTbI MO CO3-
AaHuto BoctouHo-Cnbupckoro dmunmnana (BCP). B Te-
yeHune 1946-1947 rr. B8 OprkomuTeT npeacTaBNeHO
HECKOIbKO NPOEKTOB, aBTOPaMM KOTOPbIX ABAANUCH
npeacTaBUTeNIN BY30B, OTPACAEBbIX OpPraHW3aLui,
aKagemumyeckmux HNY.

MpoeKT, NoAroToBAEHHbIM B ceHTAbpe 1946
r. pektopom WpkyTckoro yHusepcuteta T.T. Jey-
nem, npodeccopom E.B. MaBNOBCKMM M HayanbHK-
Kom BocTouHO-CMBUPCKOro reoorMyeckoro ynpas-
nenns WU.A. Kobenaukum, npegnaran passBuBaThb
reosioro-reorpaduyeckme M IMMHONOTMYECKME UC-
CNefloBaHMA N OpraHM30BaTb OTAeNbl Puanana: reo-
NIornYeckunii, netporpadmn N pyaHbiIx MecTopoxKae-
HWI, reomopoonoro-reorpaduyecknii, NTMMHONOTU-
Yyeckuii. B ganbHelwem naaHUMPOBANOCh co3faHue
noapasaeneHnin XMMMUYECKoro U BUONOrMYecKoro
npodpuns (HANHL. &.1.0n. 1. 4. 1. 1. 1-2).

MpoeKT, NoAroToBAEHHbIN HavyanbHMKOM Bait-
KaZIbCKOM NMMHONornyeckon craHumm AH CCCP
O.H. TannesbiMm U ero 3amectutenem b.A. Chobog-
UYMKOBbIM B OKTAOpe 1946 r., npegnaran BK/tO-
UnTb B cocTaB GuaMana WecTb MHCTUTYTOB: [OpHO-
reonormyecknin; feorpado-skoHOMMYECKU; TpaHc-
NOPTHO-3HEPreTUYEeCKUin; XMMUKO-TEXHOIOTUYECKNI
Cenbckoro xossncrea; MeamnKko-61oormyecknis
(HA MHU. ©. 1. On. 1. 4. 2. /1. 5-6). B uncne nep-
BbIX M/JIAHMPOBANOCb oOpraHmsosBatb Meauko-
6MONOTMYECKUN MHCTUTYT Kak Hanbonee obecneyeH-
HbIV cneunanuctamu. [lpyrue nogpasaeneHus, cHa-
Yyana co3faHHble KaK CEKTOPA, A0/IKHbI 6blM NocTe-
NeHHO Pa3BUTbCA B UHCTUTYTbI.

O.H. Tannes n b.A. ChoboaunmKoB BbiCKazanu
MHeHWe, YTo BalKaNbCKyO IMMHONOTMYECKYIO CTaH-
UM M VIpKYTCKYHO CEMCMUYECKYHO CTaHLMIO He CTo-
UT BK/KOYATb B cOCTaB GUANANG, TaK KakK 3TU yuperK-
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the question of the establishment of the branch of
the Academy of Sciences in Eastern Siberia again.

In June of 1946, N.A. Florensov, E.V. Pavlovsky,
T.T. Deulya, I.A. Kobelyatsky, V.A. Krotov with the
support of the Irkutsk Regional Committee (b) and
Irkutsk Province Executive Committee appealed to
the Central Committee of the All-Union Communist
Party (b) and the USSR Cabinet with a proposal to
organize All-Union Conference on the Study of
Productive Forces in Irkutsk in order to determine
the prospect of the establishment of a branch of
the Academy of Sciences. In August of 1946, the
Secretariat of the Central Committee of the the All-
Union Communist Party (b) authorized to convene
the Conference [Kazarin, 1998, p. 200].

They established the Organizing Committee
in Irkutsk, which was involved not only in the
preparation of the scientific event, but also
accumulated projects on the establishment of
the Eastern Siberian Branch (ESB). During the
years of 1946-1947, several projects, created
by the representatives of universities, industry
organizations, academic research institutions were
presented to the Organizing Committee.

The draft prepared in September of 1946 by
T.T. Deulya, the rector of the University of Irkutsk,
Professor E.V. Pavlovsky and |.A. Kobelyatsky,
the chief of the Eastern Siberian Geological
Department, offered to develop geological,
geographical and limnological studies and
establish the branch’s departments: Departments
of geology, petrography and mineral deposits,
geomorphology and geography, and limnology.
Then they planned to create some units of
chemical and biological profile (SA ISC. F. 1. Op.
1.D. 1. L. 1-2).

The draft, prepared by D.N. Taliev, the chief of
the Baikal Limnological Station of the Academy of
Sciences of the USSR, and B.Ya. Slobodchikov, his
deputy, in October 1946, proposed to include six
institutions in the branch: the Institute of Mines
and Geology; the Institute of Geography and
Economics, the Institute of Transport and Energy,
the Institute of Chemical Engineering, the Institute
of Agriculture, the Institute of Medicine and
Biology (SAISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 2. L. 5-6). First of all,
they planned to open the Institute of Medicine and
Biology as the one having the biggest number of

HNEJATOI'MYECKOI'O YHUBEPCUTETA UM. B.I1. ACTA®BEBA

KPACHOSPCKOI'O TOCYZAAPCTBEHHOI'O




#B TPEHAE BPEMEHMU

OEHUA OPUEHTMPOBAHbI Ha M3yYeHMe obLMX 3aKo-
HOMEPHOCTEN IMMHOIOTUU U CEACMONOTMN B COOT-
BETCTBUM C NJIAHOM UCCAeLOBaHMN AKageMnmn Hayk
(HAMHL. ¢.1.0n.1. 4. 2. 1.10-11).

Yke B 1946 r. B 3anucke 3aB. Kadeapomn 6umono-
rmm MeauumnHCKoro MHCTUTYyTa npodeccopa C.U. Tu-
modeeBa bbbl NocTaBAeH BOMNPOC O Heobxoaumo-
CTW Pa3BUTUA IKONOTUYECKUX UCCIeL0BaHUI B CBA-
31 C MHTEHCUBHbIM WMHAYCTPUANbHbIM OCBOEHUEM
BocTtouHoi Cubupu. Mpodeccop BbICKazan Tesuc
O HEMPEMEHHOM YYacTUM BedyLMX Y4YeHblX CTpa-
Hbl B paboTe ¢uAMana Kak yCcNoBUS OpraHU3aumm
paboT ¢yHAAMeHTaIbHO-TEOPETUYECKOTO YPOBHA
(HAUHU. ®.1.0n. 1. 4. 2. /1. 19-20).

B okTAbpe 1946 r. Ha coBel,aHNN Hay4yHOM 0b-
LLLeCTBEHHOCTM pa3ropenacb OypHaa Auckyccua
Mo NoBoAY OPraHM3aLNOHHOM GOPMbI KOMMIEKCHO-
ro akagemMunyeckoro yupexgeHua. loueHT pKyTCKO-
ro yHmsepcuteta B.A. KpoToB pasbsicHun, 4to 6asa —
3TO KOMMIEKCHbIN MHCTUTYT, COCTOALLNIMA U3 CEKTO-
poB, a duanan npegnonaraeT BOSMOMXKHOCTb CO34a-
HMA He TOJIbKO CEKTOPOB, HO U MHCTUTYTOB. OH 0Cc060
nog4vyepKHyn, 4To 3aga4a puavana Akagemmn HayK —
KOOPANHMPOBATb MCCNe0BAHNA BCEX CEKTOPOB Ha-
ykn (HAVHLU. &.1.0n.1. 4. 1. /1.5, 8).

B.A. KpoToB npeanoxunn BKAKYNTL B COCTaB GuU-
Nvana: baKanbCKyH IMMHONOTMYECKYHO CTaHL MO (U1
B Aa/ibHenlem co34aTb Ha ee ocHoBe NHCTUTYT 6ali-
KanoseneHua); obcepBaToputo U CeTb Celcmuye-
CKunx ctaHuunii; HUMN 6uonormm UpKyTcKoro yHuBep-
cuteTa; bypat-MoHronbckuii HUM KynbTypbl 1 3KO-
HOMMKKN. Cpean HOBbIX NOAPA3LENeHNIA OH Ha3Ban:
ceKkTopa — reorpadumn, ceNbCKOro Xo3aMcTea, meaun-
LMHbI; XMMNYECKYI0 1abopaToOpmIo; HayuyHy 6nbnun-
oteky (HAVUHLU. ®.1.0n.1.4.1. 1.9, 11).

Pektop Wpkytckoro yHusepcuteta T.T. eynA
BbICKa3a/icA NPOTMB Nepeaayn B duanan nogpasae-
JNIeHUIN yHMBepcUTETa U NPEeSNoXKMA B NEpPBY0 ove-
pefb €CO34aTb re0NOrMYECKUN CEKTOP, YTOObI «Bbl-
pacTUTb» 13 Hero feonornyecknit MHCTUTYT. OH Noga-
OepKan naer co3aaHua UHCTUTYTOB XMMUYECKOTO
W rymaHuTapHoro npoounan. lyMmaHUTAapHbIN UHCTU-
TYT, MO €r0 MHEHMUIO, MOXHO BbI/I0 CO34aTb Ha OCHO-
BE UccaenoBaHUM Kpaesegyeckoro mysea (HA MHLL.
®.1.0n.1.4.1.1.14-15).

YYacTHMKM COBELLaHWNA BbIpa3nuan NoXKenaHue,
yTtobbl OYAYWMNIA dnanan Bosrnasua akagemumk C.C.
CMUpPHOB, KPYNHbIM cneunanuct B obnactu reono-
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experts. Other units, first started as sectors, should
have been gradually turning into the Institutes.

D.N. Taliev and B.Ya. Slobodchikov suggested
that Baikal Limnological Station and Irkutsk seismic
station should not be included in the branch, as
these institutions focused on the study of the
general laws of Limnology and Seismology in
accordance with the plan of studies of the Academy
of Sciences (SAISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 2. L. 10-11).

In 1946, the note of Professor S.I. Timofeev,
the head of Department of Biology of the Institute
of Medicine, raised the question about the need
to develop environmental researches due to the
intense industrial development of Eastern Siberia.
The professor stated a thesis about indispensable
participation of leading national scientists in the
work of the branch as a condition of organization
of works at theoretical fundamental level (SA ISC.
1. Op. 1. D. 2. L. 19-20).

In October of 1946 the meeting of the
scientific community was the playground for a
stormy debate about the organizational form of
the complex academic institution. V.A. Krotov,
Associate Professor of the University of Irkutsk,
explained that the base is a complex institution
composed of the sectors, and a branch implies
the possibility of establishing not only sectors,
but institutions as well. He stressed that the task
of the branch of the Academy of Sciences was
to coordinate researches in all sectors of science
(SAISC.F.1.0p.1.D.1.L.5, 8).

V.A. Krotov suggested including in the branch:
Baikal Limnological Station (and then creating
the Institute of the Baikal Studies on its basis); an
observatory and a network of seismic stations; the
Institute of Biology of the University of Irkutsk,
the Buryat-Mongolian Institute of Culture and
Economics. He mentioned the following sectors
among the new units: the sectors of geography,
agriculture, medicine; chemical laboratory,
research library (NAINS. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 1. L. 9, 11).

TT. Deulya, the rector of the University of
Irkutsk, opposed to the transfer of the units of the
university to the branch and offered primarily to
establish a geological sector to “grow” the Institute
of Geology out of it. He supported the idea about
the establishment of the Institute of Chemistry
and Humanities. In his opinion, the Institute of
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MM M MUHepanorum BoctouHol Cnbupu, KoTopbiit
B roZbl BOMHbI paboTan B MpKyTCKe B coapyKecTse
C MEeCTHbIMU reosioramu. MoTeHuManbHbIM ANPEKTO-
POM  reo/NIorMyYeckoro MHCTUTYTa Obll HA3BaH yye-
HUK akagemumka B.A. O6pyyeBa npodeccop E.B. MNas-
nosckuii (HAUHLU. ©.1.0n. 1. 4. 1. N. 28).

B nione 1947 r. sy3osckue y4yeHble [.[1. Cnas-
HUH u  AJl. Mepenennua wn3 MIPKYTCKOro ropHo-
MeTaNNypPruyeckoro MHCTUTYTa NpeacTaBUAN CBOM
npoekT. Ero ocHoBHaA naea — B MpKyTcKe HaJo cpa-
3y CO34,aBaTb KOMMIEKC MHCTUTYTOB, CEKTOPOB U Na-
6opaTopuii, KOTopble NO4 PYKOBOACTBOM LLEHTPASb-
Hbix HWW opraHusyloT pa3paboTky TeopeTnyeckmnx
M NPpUKNagHbIX npobnem BoctouyHo Cubupm co-
BMECTHO C By3aMM W OTpac/eBbIMW OpraHu3auma-
mun. NepeyeHb HUY BKAOYan MHCTUTYTbI: TOpHOro
Aena v reonoruu; TpaHcnopTa U SHEPreTUKn; Xumum
n meTannyprum; CenbCKOXO3ANCTBEHHbIN; OpraHu-
3aUMKN TPyAa M SKOHOMMKK; MeanumHcknin. Mpeana-
rafiocb TaKXKe CO34aTb HECKO/IbKO CEKTOPOB — CTPO-
NTenbCcTBa, PU3MKK, rymaHutTapHbii (HA MHL,. ©. 1.
On.1.4.1.N1.31-32).

B aBrycte 1947 r. B UpKyTCKe cocToanacb Bce-
COl3HAA KOHpepeHUUs Mo U3Y4YeHU MPOU3BO-
AMTenbHbIX cun UpKyTcKoW obnactu. Ee yyacTHu-
KU onpeaenvam OCHOBHble HanpaBAeHUA u3yde-
HMA N OCBOEHUA TMAPO3HEPreTUYECKMX, TONMINBHbBIX
N MMHEPANbHO-CbIPbEBbIX PECYPCOB PErMoHa W Bbli-
CKasanucb 3a opraHmsaumnto punmana AH CCCP. Be-
Ayline yyeHble CTpaHbl PeKOMeHA0BaNM CO34aBaThb
Hay4YHble y4YpexAeHMA UCXOAA M3 TOro KOMMJeKca
33,34, KOTOpble CTOAN Nepes 3KOHOMMKOM Kpas.

Mocne 3aBeplweHMA KoHdepeHUUM NpPoOAOS-
UAOCb 06CYy)KAeHMe OCHOBHbIX npobsiem co3pa-
HMA dunmMana Akagemum Hayk. B okTtabpe 1947 r.
.M. ChasHuH 1 A.J]. epenennua yTOMHUAN CTPYK-
TYpy ¢unvana, yuutbiBaa pPeKOMEeHAAUMU KOH-
bepeHUMn, M BKAOYMAM B €r0 COCTaB WMHCTUTYTHI:
lopHO-reonornyeckuii; ToNJIMBHO-3HEPTETUYECKUNA;
XumuKo-meTannypruyeckmin (HA UHL. @. 1. On. 1.
4.2.1n.1-3).

OpHOBpPEMEHHO yYeHble-reo10rv U3 pasHbix Be-
pomcts —I.M. ChasHuH, N.A. Kobenauknii, H.A. ®no-
peHcoB u M.B. lonaKkoB — nNOArOTOBUAW NPOEKT
[OpHO-reoIOrMYEeCcKOro MHCTUTYTA, KOTOPbLIN JONKEH
6blN1 COCTOATb M3 NATU CEKTOPOB — re€0sIorun, pya-
HbIX MECTOPOXKAEHWI, YA U HEPYAHbIX MCKoMae-
MbIX, FOPHOrO Aena, 0boraleHnsa NonesHbIX UCKoMa-
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Humanities could be established on the basis of
the researches of the museum of regional studies
(SAISC.F.1.0p. 1. D. 1. L. 14-15).

The meeting’s attendants expressed the wish
about heading the future branch. They said they
would like it to be headed by the academician S.S.
Smirnov, the famous expert in the field of geology
and mineralogy of Eastern Siberia, who worked in
Irkutsk in collaboration with the local geologists
during the war. Professor E.V. Pavlovsky, a student
of the academician V.A. Obruchev, was considered
to be the potential director of the Institute of
Geology (SAISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 1. L. 28).

In July of 1947 the university scientists G.P.
Slavnin and A.L. Perepelitsa from Irkutsk Mining
and Metallurgical Institute presented their project.
Its basic idea was that a set of institutions, sectors
and laboratories should have been immediately
established in Irkutsk under the leadership of
the central National Research Institutes for
more effective development of theoretical and
applied problems of Eastern Siberia together with
universities and industry organizations. The list
included the following National Research Institutes:
the Institute of Mines and Geology; the Institute of
Transport and Energy, the Institute of Chemistry
and Metallurgy; the Institute of Agriculture, the
Institute of Labour and Economics; the Institute of
Medicine. It was also supposed to create a number
of sectors — sectors of construction, physics,
humanities (SA ISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 1. L. 31-32).

In August of 1947 the All-Union Conference on
the Study of Productive Forces of the Irkutsk region
took place in Irkutsk. The participants identified
the main areas of study and development of
hydropower, fuel and mineral resources of the
region and called for the organization of the
branch of the Academy of Sciences of the USSR.
Leading national scientists recommended to create
scientific institutions on the basis of the complex of
tasks that the economy of the region faced.

After the conference the discussion of the major
challenges of establishing the branch of the Academy
of Sciences went on. In October of 1947 G.P. Slavnin
and A.L. Perepelitsa refined the structure of the
branch, taking into account the recommendations of
the conference, and included the Institute of Mines
and Geology; the Institute of Transport and Energy,
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eMblX, a Takxe My3ses reosiorum BoctouHoit Cnbupwu
(HAVHU. ¢.1.0n.1. 4.2.1.21-22).

Ncxopa U3 peweHnin KoHdepeHuMn u UToros
obcyxaeHua npoektoB BCO mecTHOM 06LLeCTBEHHO-
CTbto, MpKyTCKMII 06KOM NapTnmn B HoAbpe 1947 . 06-
patunca s CM CCCP c npocbb0oii paspelunTb opraHu-
30BaTb B MpKyTCKe duamnan Akagemun Hayk. Mpegs-
Nlaraemas CTpyKTypa ¢uavana BKAOYANA UHCTUTY-
Tbl WU CEKTOPA NO CAeayoWwmMM HanpaBieHUsaM: reo-
JIOTUM Y TOPHOTO Aena; XMMUU 1 MeTannyprum; To-
NnanBa M rMAPO3HEpPreTMKM; o3epoBeseHuns (1syde-
HWe 03. balikan); Buonornn mu meanumHbl; reorpadpun
M NOYBOBEAEHMA; IECHOTO U CE/IbCKOTO XO3AMCTBA;
TPAHCNOPTA; SKOHOMMKU U TYyMaHUTapHbIX Uccneno-
BaHWI. OTKPbITb GMAMAN MECTHbIE BNACTU Npeaara-
nn B saHBape 1948 r. [KaszapuH, 1998, c. 201].

MpoeKT BCP, KoTopbli BHAYaie 0XBaTbiBa LWK-
POKWI CNEKTP B3aMMOYBA3AHHbIX HAaYy4YHbIX Hanpas-
NIeHUI, B X04e NeperoBopoB U KOHCYNbTALMUM C LieH-
TPaNbHbIMU MHCTAHUMAMMU NOCTENEHHO KOPPEKTU-
pOBasicA B CTOPOHY YyMeHbLlueHua coctasa HWY. Mpwu-
UYMHbI «CHKATUA» NPOEKTA CBOAMUCH K caeaytoue-
MY: HeXeslaHMe KPYMHbIX YYeHbIX BO3M1aBUTb Nepu-
depuitHble HNY; peBHOCTHOE OTHOLLEHWUE LeHTPab-
HbIX MHCTUTYTOB W BEAOMCTB K BK/HOYEHUIO UX TEMa-
TUKW B CTPYKTYpYy duamnana; otcytcreme Heobxoam-
MbIX KaApoBbIX, PUHAHCOBbLIX U MaTepuabHbIX pe-
CYpCOB.

B nekabpe 1948 r. 8 CM CCCP obpaTtuica npe-
3naeHT AH CCCP akagemuk C.U. BaBnioB, KOTOPbIN
npegnaran ocCyLecTBUTb OpraHusauuto duamana
B ABa oTana. Ha nepsom stane B8 1949 r. nnaHupo-
Ba/I0Cb CO34aTb: ABa MHCTUTYTa — [eonorum, dHep-
reTMKM U XMMWUK; a TaKKe gBa cekTopa — buonoru-
YECKUIM M 3KOHOMMKO-reorpadmnyeckmin. Ha BTopom
aTane B 1950-1951 rr. nhaHMpPOBaANOCh OCYLLECTBUTb
OpraHM3aLmio 4 PYrMX UHCTUTYTOB M NoApPa3aeNeHni
(HAUHU.$.1.0n.1. 4. 4. 1. 1-2).

1 ¢eBpana 1949 r. CM CCCP noctaHoOBWA Opra-
HM30BaTb B MpKyTcKe BocTouyHO-CMBUpPCKUA dunu-
an Akagemuu Hayk, 24 despans 3TOro e roga co-
OTBETCTBYHOLLEEe NMOCTAHOBAEHME MPUHAN Npe3namn-
ym AH CCCP. TnaBHbIMM HanpaBieHUAMU OeATeNb-
HocTK dunmnana ABAANNCH U3yYeHWe NPUPOSHbIX pe-
CYpPCOB M COAENCTBME PA3BUTUIO OCHOBHbLIX OTpac-
el HapoZHOro X035MCTBa perMoHa. B chepy BHUMa-
HMA duamnana BKAOYEHbI NPobaeMbl Tpex TeppUTO-
puii —NpKyTcKon n YnTuHCKoM obnacten, bypatckoin
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the Institute of Chemistry and Metallurgy in the
branch (SAISC.F.1.0p. 1.D. 2. L. 1-3).

At the same time, scientists and geologists
from different departments — G.P. Slavnin, L.A.
Kobelyatsky, N.A. Florensov and M.V. Polyakov —
prepared the project for the Institute of Mines and
Geology, which was to consist of five departments—
Departments of geology, ore deposits, coal and
non-metallic minerals, mines, mineral processing,
as well as the Museum of Geology of Eastern
Siberia (SAISC. F. 1. Op. 1.D. 2. L. 21-22).

Basing on the decisions of the conference and
the results of the discussion of the projects with
the local community, in November of 1947 Irkutsk
Regional Party Committee addressed to the USSR
Cabinet for the permission to open the Irkutsk
branch of the Academy of Sciences. The proposed
structure of the branch involved institutions and
sectors in the following areas: geology and mining,
chemistry and metallurgy; fuel and hydropower;
limnology (the study of the lake Baikal); biology and
medicine; geography and soil science; forestry and
agriculture; transport; economy and humanities.
The local authorities offered to open the branch in
January of 1948 [Kazarin, 1998, p. 201].

This project which initially covered a wide
range of interrelated scientific fields, in the course
of negotiations and consultations with the central
authorities gradually evolved towards the reduction
of the staff of National Research Institution. The
causes of such “compression” of the project were
the following: reluctance of major scientists to lead
provincial National Research Institutions; jealous
attitude of the central institutions and agencies to
including the fields of their scientific studies in the
structure of the branch, the lack of the necessary
human, financial and material resources.

In December of 1948 S.1. Vavilov, the president
of the Academy of Sciences of the USSR, appealed
to the USSR Cabinet with the proposal to divide
the process of establishing the branch into two
stages. In the first stage in 1949 it was planned to
create two institutes — the Institute of Geology,
and the Institute of Energy and Chemistry; and
two departments — Departments of Biology and
Economic Geography. In the second stage in 1950-
1951 they planned to establish other institutes and
departments (SA ISC. F.1. Op. 1. D. 4. L. 1-2).
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ACCP. NocTaHoOBEHUA YTBEPAUNU CTPYKTYPY PuUan-
ana, npeanoxeHHyo akagemukom C.U. BaBnnosbim
A5 nepBoro aTana ero opraHusauunu (HA MHL,. ©. 1.
On.1.4.58.1.2).

MoaBneHMe OCHOBOMOMATAWUX OOKYMEHTOB
06 opraHusaumMm puamnana He pelwano aBTomaTnye-
CKM BaKHeMLWMI BONPOC € Kagpamu. HameyasBLumi-
CA Ha NOCT pyKoBoauTena npesmamyma BCO akage-
MUK C.C. CMUpHOB yLwwen 13 Xu3Hu B 1947 r. He co-
CTOANOCb Ha3HayeHne akagemumKa A.B. BuHTepa, cbl-
rpaBLIero BaxKHYH posib Ha MpPKyTCKON KoHbepeH-
unmn 1947r.

CekpeTapb  MpKyTckoro BKN(6)
M.M. CmupHoB ¢ TpeBoroi coobuwan B LUK naptuu,
yto AKagzemus Hayk CCCP He nposBnseT 40/KHOMU
aKTUMBHOCTM B nogbope pyKoBoAALWMX Kagpos. UH-
dbopmavmio 0 TOM, YTO BY3bl U OTPACNEBbLIE MHCTU-
TYTbl NPENATCTBYIOT Nepexoay KaapoB Ha PyKOBO-
Aawme foMKHOCTM duanana, oH NoaATBEPAMUN KOH-
KpeTHbiMmK npumepamum (HA MHLL. &. 1. On. 1. 4. 4.
Nn.7-9).

Jnwb K cepegmHe 1950 r. 6bina 4OCTUNHYTA O0-

obkoma

roBOPEeHHOCTb O Ha3Ha4YeHuW npegcepatenem npe-
3namyma BCO un.-kop. AH CCCP B.B. 3BoHKOBa. [1o-
CTOAHHO NporkmBasa B MockBe, oH npueskan B Wp-
KYTCK B KOMaHAWPOBKM ABaXAbl B rof, NO3TOMY Op-
raHMsaunoHHoi pabotoi BCO 3aHMmanucb ero 3a-
mectutenn. Heobxoammas 6asa 4ns HayuHbIX Uccie-
[0BaHWUI duamnana co3gaBanacb OKOMO TPEX NeT.

B 1950-e rr.
ro noteHuuana BoctouHon Cubupm npoucxopm-
no 6narogapsa ycuavam pykosogutenen odwunauva-
na E.B. Masnosckoro u B.A. KpoToBa. B coctas BCO
Bow KM Balikanbckaa NMMHOJMIOTMYECKaA CTaHUMA,
MarHUTHo-noHocdepHasn
unmn. Co3gaHbl HOBble labopaTopumM NpuU Npesnany-
me BCO n B UHCTUTYTe reonornm, oTaen sHepreTmkm
BblaeneH U3 MIHCTUTYTa SHepPreTMKM n XmuMum ¢ nep-
CMNEeKTMBOM pa3BUTUA B CAMOCTOATENbHbIA MHCTUTYT.

B pganbHenwem nopgpasgeneHus ¢unvana co-
CTaBUAM Ty OCHOBY, Ha KOTOPOW BbIPOCAN CaMOCTO-
ATeNbHble MHCTUTYTbl Cnbupckoro otaeneHus AH
CCCP / PAH. UHcTUTYT reonormu B coctase Otaene-
HMA M3MEHWN HasBaHMe Ha BocTouyHo-Cubupckui
reo/IoOrMYeCcKnin MHCTUTYT, @ HbiHE M3BeCTeH KaK UH-
CTUTYT 3eMHOI Kopbl. WccneposaTtenn-reorpadol
y4yacTtBoBanM B co3gaHmm WHcTUTYyTa reorpadpum
(1957), HbiHe UHcTuTyT reorpadumm mm. B.B. Coua-

yKpenneHve axkaLemuyecko-

W cecmmyeckana  CTaH-
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On February 1, 1949 the USSR Cabinet decided
to organize the Eastern-Siberian branch of the
Academy of Sciences in Irkutsk. On February 24,
1949 the presidium of the Academy of Sciences of
the USSR issued the decree in accordance with the
decision. The main activities of the branch were
studying the natural resources and promotion of
the development of the regional economy’s key
sectors. The spotlight of the branch included the
problems of three areas - the Irkutsk region, the
Chita region and the Buryat Autonomous Soviet
Socialist Republic. The resolutions approved
the structure of the branch, proposed by the
academician S.I. Vavilov for the first phase of its
organization (SA ISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 58. L. 2).

The emergence of the fundamental documents
on the organization of the branch did not solve the
major problem with the staff. The academician
S.S. Smirnov, who was planned for the post of
the head of the branch’s Presidium, died in 1947.
The appointment of the academician A.V. Vinter,
who had played an important role in the Irkutsk
Conference in 1947, was not realized as well.

The secretary of the Irkutsk regional
committee of the All-Union Communist Party (b)
M.M. Smirnov anxiously reported to the Central
Committee that the Academy of Sciences of
the USSR did not show a proper activity in the
selection of executive staff. He confirmed the
information that universities and industry training
institutions impeded the transition of the staff to
the executive positions in the branch, by particular
examples (SAISC. F. 1. Op. 1. D. 4. L. 7-9).

Only in the middle of 1950 the agreement on
the appointment of V.V. Zvonkov, a corresponding
member of the Academy of Sciences of the USSR,
for the position of the chairman of the Presidium of
the ESB was reached. Constantly living in Moscow,
he went on business trips to Irkutsk twice a year,
so the organizational work on the ESB was the
responsibility of his deputies. The necessary basis
for the branch’s scientific research was being
created for nearly three years.

In the 1950-ies the strengthening of the
academic potential of Eastern Siberia was
happening due to the efforts of the branch heads
E.V. Pavlovsky and V.A. Krotov. The structure of the
branchincluded the Baikal Limnological Station, the
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Bbl. baKanbCKaa NMMHOMIOTMYECKaA CTaHUMA npe-
obpasoBaHa B JIMMHONOrMYECKMA MHCTUTYT (1960).
MarHuTHO-MoHOoChEepHan U cemcMmuyeckasa cTaHuumn
BOW/IM B cocTaB CMOMPCKOTro MHCTUTYTA 3EMHOTO
MarHeTM3ma, MoHochepbl M pacnpocTpaHeHUsa pa-
AnoBonH (1960), HbiHe MHCTUTYT CONHEYHO-3EMHOM
¢umsnkn. OToen sHepreTUKM Bowen Kak slabopaTo-
pus B cocTaB CMBUPCKOTO IHEPTreTUYECKOTO UHCTU-
TyTa (1960), HbiHE MIHCTUTYT CUCTEM SHEPTETUKU UM.
J1.LA. MeneHTbeBa. bruonorn BCO npogonknnum pesa-
TeNbHOCTb B BocToyHO-CbMpcKkom Bronormyeckom
nHcTUTyTe (1961), HbIHE CUBUPCKNI MHCTUTYT PU3M-
ON0TUN U BUOXMMUM PACTEHUIA.

CTaHOBNEHME MEepPBOro akafAeMMUYECKOro LLeH-
Tpa BocTtouyHoit Cnbupu npomsowno BO MHOFOM
6naropapa Hay4yHbIM WKoMam MpPKYTCKOro yHuBep-
cuTeTa. B TeueHmne nepBOro AecATUNETUA CBOETO CY-
LLLeCcTBOBAHMUA yyeHble BCP BHeECAM CyLLeCTBEHHbIN
BKNAa4, B N3y4yeHMe MUHEepPanbHO-CbIpbeBbIX pecyp-
COB pervoHa n cnocobcTBoBanM Pa3sBUTUIO MPOU3-
BOAMTENbHbIX cun BocTouHolt Cnbupu. Ha ocHoBe
BC® B KoHUe 1950-x rr. Hayan cBoe dopmMUpoOBa-
HWEe BTOPOM NO YNCAEHHOCTU HaYUYHbIX yYpeXaeHU
MpPKYTCKNI HaydHbin ueHTp CO PAH [KynepuwTox,
c. 59-130].

EcTecTBEHHbIM MNpoAoOKEHMEM MpoLuecca us-
y4eHMA NPOU3BOAMUTENbHBIX CUA ABAANOCH Pa3BU-
TME CEeTUM Hay4HbIX y4yperaeHui Ha mectax. lpo-
eKT no co3gaHuo dunmana Akagemmun Hayk B Boc-
ToyHon Cnbupu peannsoBasica B yCEYEHHOM Ba-
puaHte. Mobunusaumna ¢uananos Ha peleHue Te-
KyWwmMx noTpebHOCTEN 3KOHOMMUKM He cnocobcTBo-
Basia Pa3BUTUIO B UX CTPYKTYpPE KOMIMJIEKCHbIX Te-
OpeTUYECKUX W NPUKNAAHbIX wccnepoBaHuin. To,
YTO MECTHOe Hay4yHoe coobLWecTBO OTYETIMBO OCO-
3HaBaNO HeobXOAMMOCTb Pa3BUTUA TaKUX MUCCae-
AOBAHWI MO WKMPOKOMY CMeKTpy npobsiem, Ha-
rNALHO MOKasasio obCy*KAEHMEe NPOEKTOB HaKaHy-
He opraHusaumm BocTouyHo-Cubupckoro dunma-
na AH CCCP. lMpegnoxeHuna yvyeHbix 1946-1947 rr.
YaCTUYHO peanu3oBaZUCb CNYCTA AecATUneTue
B pamkax Cnbupckoro otaeneHuns AH CCCP / PAH.

CnnUcoK CoKpaLlleHUun

1. HAWHL,—Hay4HbI apxmB MpKYTCKOro Hay4HOTo
ueHTtpa CO PAH.

2. HACO — HayuHbli1 apxus Cubupckoro otaeneHums
PAH.
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magnetic and seismic station and the ionospheric
station. Some new laboratories at the Presidium
of the ESB and at the Institute of Geology were
established, Department of Energy was separated
from the Institute of Energy and Chemistry with the
prospect of becoming an independent institute.

Later the divisions of the branch became the
basiswhichtheindependentinstitutes of the Siberian
Branch of the USSR / Russian Academy of Sciences
grew on. The Institute of Geology in the branch
changed its name for Eastern Siberian Geological
Institute, now it is known as the Institute of the
Earth crust. Researchers-geographers were involved
in establishing of the Institute of Geography (1957)
that is now the Institute of Geography named after
V.B. Sochava. The Baikal Limnological Station was
transformed into Limnological Institute (1960). The
magnetic and ionospheric station and the seismic
station became a part of the Siberian Institute of
Terrestrial Magnetism, lonosphere and Radio Wave
Propagation (1960), that is now the Institute of
Solar-Terrestrial Physics. The Department of Energy
was included in the Siberian Institute of Energy as a
laboratory (1960), now it is the Institute of Energy
Systems named after L.A. Melentyev. The biologists
of the branch continued working in Eastern Siberian
Biological Institute (1961) that is now the Siberian
Institute of Plant Physiology and Biochemistry.

The formation of the first academic center
of Eastern Siberia was largely due to the scientific
schools of the University of Irkutsk. During the
first decade of its existence, the branch’s scientists
made a significant contribution to the study of the
regional mineral resources and contributed to the
development of the productive forces of Eastern
Siberia. On the basis of the branch in the late 1950-
ies the Irkutsk Scientific Center of the Siberian
Branch of the Russian Academy of Sciences, that
was the second largest research institution, was
opened [Kupershtokh, p. 59-130].

The process of studying the productive forces
naturally resulted in the development of the
network of regional academic institutions. The
project to establish a branch of the Academy of
SciencesinEasternSiberiawasrealizedinatruncated
version. Mobilization of the branches to solve the
current issues of the economy was not conducive
to the development of the complex theoretical and
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applied researches in their structure. The fact that
the local scientific community clearly understood
the need in developing such researches on a wide
range of issues, was obviously demonstrated by
the discussion of the projects on the eve of the
organization of the Eastern Siberian Branch of the
Academy of Sciences of the USSR. The scientists’
offers in 1946-1947 were partially realized after a
decade in the framework of the Siberian Branch of
the USSR / Russian Academy of Sciences.

List of abbreviations:

1. SAISC—Scientific Archive of the Irkutsk Scientific
Center of the Russian Academy of Sciences.

2. SA SB — Scientific Archive of the Siberian
Branch of the Russian Academy of Sciences.
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